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QUAM, BERGLIN & POST, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
110 WEST MAIN - P.O. BOX 426
ELK POINT, SOUTH DAKOTA 57025

(605) 356-3374

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

School Board
Flandreau School District No. 50-3
Moody County, South Dakota

Repoit on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmentat activities, business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Flandreau School
District No. 50-3, Moody County, South Dakota (School District), as of June 30, 2016 and for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Schoot District’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The School District's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemment of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the School District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaiuating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions. '

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Flandreau School District No. 50-3 as of
June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.,
Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the Schedule of Funding Progress, the Pension
Schedules, and Budgetary Comparison Schedules as listed in the Table of Contents be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmentai Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statemants in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Flandreau School District’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards, which is required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), listed in the Table of Contents, is. presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying -
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain

~additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly ta the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the-financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 20, 2017, on our consideration of the School District's internal controt over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Flandreau School District’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

w"‘"”'z ig‘»‘?&:—d— @/?c._

Quam, Bergiin & Post, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

February 20, 2017



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of Flandreau School District #50-3's annual financial report presents our discussion
and analysis of the School's financial performance during the fiscal year ended on June 30, 20186.
Please read it in conjunction with the Schoo!’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s The School’s net position from governmental fund activities is $10,046,731.39 and business
type activities is $145,701.87. The total net position for governmental and business-type
activities is $10,192,433.26.

o During the year, per the Statement of Activities, the School's revenues generated from
taxes and other revenues of the governmental activities were $673,678.05 more than the
$6,494,377.61 governmental expenditures. This also includes the GASB 68 activity for
SDRS. The business-type activities revenues generated $13,860.01 more than the
business-type activities expenditures of $384,707.60,

¢ In the Capital Outlay Fund, expenditures exceeded revenues by $2,572.01. The Capital
Outlay’s fund balance decreased from $318,390.83 to $315,818.82. Thls is due to the
completion of the Energy Efficiency Project.

e Beginning with FY 2011 the Impact Aid fund is no longer recognized as a special revenue
fund for year-end reporting. The Impact Aid fund is maintained throughout the year and at

- year-end it is blended with the General Fund for reporting purposes. During FY 2016
$222,996 of Impact Aid funds were transferred to the General Fund

e The total cost of the School's General Fund programs increased by 9.2% and the total cost
of the School’s Special Education Fund programs increased by 8.5%. The General Fund’s
cost increase included additional staffing, federal funded expenses and utilities that were
previously supplemented in Capital Outlay. Special Education cost increase involves
purchased services which are driven by individual student needs.

o The District reduced its General Obligation Bond indebtedness $230,000. G.O. Bond debt
payable on June 30, 2016, was $1,250,000.

o The District decreased its Capital Outlay Certificate indebtedness $215,000. Capital Outlay
Certificates payable on June 30, 2016, was $4,930,000.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- This annuaf report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements and required supplementary information. 'The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the School:

s The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-
term and short-term information about the School’s overall financial status.
¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
School government, reporting the School's operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements.
s The governmental funds statements tell how basic services, e.g., regular and special
education, were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.
o Proprietary fund statements offer short-and long-term financial information about the
activities that the school operates like a business and the activitles that provide services
for its other programs and activities, i.e., internal servics activities. The District has two
business-type activities which are Food Service and Drivers Education,
o Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent of resources that belong to others, e.g.,
student clubs {agency funds) and scholarships (trust funds).
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The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate

to one another.

Figure A-1

Required Components of
Flandreau School’'s Annual Financial Report




Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the School’s financial statements, including the
portion of the District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The
remainder of the overview section of the management’s discussion and analysis explains the
structure and contents of each of the statements.

FIGURE A-2

I Major Features of Flandreau School's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Required
Financial
Statements

Type of
Asset/Liability
Information

Government-wide

Fund Statements

‘Statements

Governmental Funds  Proprietary Funds  Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Net
Paosition
*Statement of
Activities

T LS BENEEAN O e
*Statement of Net

Statement of Net

*Statement of Revenues, Position Position
Expenditures and *Statement of *Statement of
Changes in Fund Ravenues, Changes in Net
Balances Expenses and Position
*Statement of Cash
Flows

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and

long-term

Only assets expected to  All assets and All assets and

be used up and liabilities  liabilities, both liabilities, both
that come due during the financial and short-term and
year or soon thereafter capital, and short-  long-term; the

no capital assets term and long-tarm  School's funds do
included - not currently

contain capital
assels although
they can
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net positon includes
all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have changed.
Net position, i.e., the difference between the District's assets and I|ab|htles is one way to measure

the District's fmanmal health or position.

Over {ime, increases or decreases in the District's net position is an indicator of whether its

financial health is improving or deteriorating. _
To assess the overall financial health of the District, additional factors, e.g., changes in the

District’s property tax base and changes in the state school aid fundmg formula, also need
to be considered.

L

The government-wide financial statements of the District are reported in two categories:

Governmental Activities - This category includes the District's basic instructional services,
such as elementary, middle and high school educational programs, support services
(guidance, executive administration, school board, fiscal services, etc.), debt service
payments, extracurricular activities (sports, speech, music, etc.) and capita! equipment
purchases. Property taxes, state grants and federal grants finance most of these activities.
e Business-type Activities - The District has 2 business-type activities: Food Service and
Drivers Education. The District charges a fee to students to help cover the costs of
providing food services to all students and for also providing Drivers Education summer

instruction to students.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most
significant or “major” funds rather than the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that

- the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

s+ State Law requires some funds.

« The District's School Board establishes other funds to control and manage money for
particular purposes, e.g., various scholarship trust funds.

The School has three generic fund types:

Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in the governmental
funds which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted
to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances leit at the year-end that are available for
spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term
view that helps the reader determine if there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because this information
does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements,
additional information is provided on a subsequent page that explains relationship and
reconciles the differences between the fund financial statements and the governmental-

wide statements.



Proprietary Funds - Services for which the District charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary fund statements, like the government-wide

statements, provide both short-and long-term financial information. The District uses
enterprise funds (type of proprietary fund) to report the activities of its Food Service

Program and Drivers Education Program.

Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for various external and internal
parties. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are

used for their intended purposes. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a
separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes In fiduciary net
position. These activities are excluded from the District's government-wide financial
statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL AS AWHOLE

COMBINED NET POSITION

The School’s combined net position increased as follows:

Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Pension Related Deferred Outflows
Loss on Refunding Debt

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resource

Long-Term Debt Outstanding
QOther Liabilities
Totai Liabilitles

Peansion Related beferred Inflows
Taxes Levied for a Future Perod
Total Daferred Inflows of Resources

Net Posltion:
Net investmant in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
lncréase (Decrease) in Net Position
Adjusted Beginning Net Position
Ending Net Position

Percentage of Increase (Dacrease) in
MNet Position '

Table A-1

FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT #60-3

Governmental

Staternent of Net Position

Business-Type

Total Activities

Activities Activities
FY2015 FY2016 FY2015 FY2016 FY2015 FY2016
$6,330,914.71 § 4,853,742.09 $130,182.33  $132,244.90 $6,461,097.04 $ 4,985,886.9.
12,453,000.24 13,021,986.84 8,675.44 20,249.61 12,461,675.68 13,042,238.4
18,7683,814.95 17,875,728.93 138,857.77 152,494,51 18,922,772.72 18,028,223.4
1,103,985.49 1,356,890.62 1,103,985.49 1,356,890.6: |
111,818.20 93,181.84 111,818.20 93,181.8--.
1,215,803.69 1,450,072.46 1,215,803.69 1,450,072.4
6,677,386.06 6,219,000.85 6,877,386.06 8,21 9,{)00.8::
1,115,760.06 626,145.24 7,015.91 6,792.64 1,122,775.97 632,937.8:
7,793,146.12 6,845,146.09 7.015.91 6,792.64 7,800,162.03 6,851,938.7.
1,445,761.71 1,048,302.80 1,445,761.71 1,048,302.8 :
1,387,757 .47 1,385,621.11 1,387,757.47 1,385,621.1 ..
2,833,519.18 2,433,923.91 2,833,519.18 2,433,923.9
6,563,472.37 6,935,168.68 8,675.44 20,249.61 6,572,147.81 6,9556,418.2 -
1,355,598.79 1,519,601.27 ) . 1,355,598.79 1,519,601.2°
1,453,982.18 1,591,961.44 123,166.42 125,452.26 1,677,148.60 1,717,413.7
$9,373,053.24 $10,046,731.32 $131,841.86  $145,701.87 $9,504,805.20 §$10,192,433.2
346,770.67 673,678.05 12,788.13 13,860.01 358,558.80 687,538.0¢ -
9,026,282.67 9,373,053.34 119,053.73 131,841.86 8,145,336.40 8,504,895.2
$9,373,053.34  $10,046,731.39 $131,841.86  $145,701.87 $9,504,805.20 $10,192,433.2 ©
3.84% 7.19% 10.74% 10.51% . 3.93% 7.23%

This section explains the differences between the curren't and prior year's assets, liabilities, and

changes in net_ position.

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources. The statement presents
the assets and liabilities in order of relative liquidity. The liabilities with average maturities greater
than one year are reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount

8




due in more than one year. The long-term liabilities of the District, consisting of construction bond
and capital outlay certificates indebtedness, have been reported in this manner on the Statement
of Net Position. The difference between the District’s assets and liabilities is its net position.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

This section shows a comparison of assets, liabilities and net position and provides explanations

. for significant differences. Changes that occurred from FY 2015 to FY 2016 are as follows:

-Increase in revenue due to the following: Property taxes, state aid and federal grants. Increase in
expenditures due to the following: additional staffing, salaries/benefits, MS roofing, SE purchased
services expenses. Food Service purchased equipment. '

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Table A-2 and the narrative that follows _cohsider the operations of the government-wide activities. -

: . - Table A-2 L
" FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT #50-3
Changes in Net Position

Total Tetal
Govemmental Business-Type
Activities _Actiities . Total Total
: FY2015 - FY2016 FY2015 FY2016 FY2015 FY2016
Revenues :
. Program Revenues ;
Charges for Services $ 102,679.09 $ 153,375.06 $ 178,338.75 $ 188, 15050 $ 281,017.84 § 341,625.56
Operating Grants and Contributic 627,654.48 970,2586.37 198,797 .48 210,281.73 826,451.96 1,180,538.10
General Revenues :
Property Taxes - 2,981,127.25 3,254,072.95 2,981,127.25 ' 3,254,072.85
Utility Taxes ©1,987.46 82,106.74 . 91,987.46 82,106.74
Revenue State Sources 2,108,611.50 2,229,766.15 2,106,611.50 12,229,766.15
Revenue Federal Sources 233,505.42 234,564.44 233,505.42 234,564.44
Qther General Ravenue 145,380.82 241,257.01 145,380.82 241,257.01
Unrestricted nvestment Earningt! 5,120.87 - 265864 108.57 135.38 5,230.44 2,792.32
Total Revenues 6,294,066.89 7,168,055.86 377,245.80 398,567.61 6,671,312.69 7,566,623.27
Expenses ' :
Instruction 3,070,296.30 3,533,019.53 3,070,296.30 3,533,019.53
Support Services 2,170,042.69 2,377,907.70. 2,170,042.69 2,377,907.70
Nonprogrammed Charges 45,707.25 - 31,158.75 45707.25 - 31,188.75
Debt Services . ) 320,067.19 220,483.86 329,067.19 220,483.86
Cocurricular Activities 332,182.79 331,807.77 o S 332,182.79 . 331,807.77
Food Service ‘ - - 358,806.57 © 37896248 358,806.57 378,962.48
- Driver's Education \ . .. 585110 - 574512 . 5,651.10° 5,745.12
Total Expenses 5,947,296.22 6,494,377.61 . 364,457.67 ' 384707.60 ' 6,311,753.89 . 6,879,085.21
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pos $ 346,770.67 $ 673,678.05 % 12,788.13 % 13,860.01 $ = 359,558.80 $ . ©87,538.06
Prior Pericd Adjustment 670,315.72 670,3158.72:
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 9,373,053.34 $ 10,046,731.39 $ 131,841.86 § 145701.87 § 9,604,895.20 § 10,192,433.26



The District's Governmental ahd Business-type revenues totaled §7,566,623.27 (See Table A -2).
Over half of the Dlstrlct s revenue comes from 2 sources - property taxes and state aid. (See
Figure A- 3)

Figura A-3
Flandreau School District
- Sources of Revenues for FY2016

‘ Unrestricted
State Sources Federal Sources |
29.47% 3.10% 7 -_~Investment
' ‘ 1 Earnings
0. 04%

- Charges for
Services
4.51%

_Other Gerteral

Revenues
: 3.19%
Operating Grants &
- Contributions .
15.60% : , :
; Utility Taxes _— ' Property. Taxes
' 1.09% I ' ' 43.00%

| The District’s Govemmental and Business-type expenditures totaled $6,879,085.21 (See Table A-
2) and covered a range of services, including instruction, support services, debt service, co-
currlcular activities, food servnces and drwer s educatson (See Figure A-4).

Flgure A-4
Flandreau School Dlstrlct

Functnonai Expenses for FY2016
: g S _ Supp_‘ort Services
Instruction . - _ - _ 34.57% -
51.36% L : o S

Cth,er Enterprise

0.08% _ _
Nonprogrammed
. Charges
Food Service _— Debt Service./ - Co-curricular 0.45%
5.51% 3.21% . - Agtivities

4.82%
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Revenues and expenses of the District’s business-type activities:

Food Service and Driver's Education revenues increased by 5.65% from $377,245.80 in FY 2015
to $398,567.61 in FY 2016 and expenses increased 5.56% from $364,457.67 in FY 2015 to
$384,707.60 in FY 2016. Revenues exceeded expenditures $12,788.13 in FY 2015 and revenues
exceeded expenditures by $13,860.01 in FY-20186.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL’'S FUNDS

Fund balances changed as follows: General Fund increased $66,245.88 due to revenues
exceeding expenditures. Capital Outlay Fund decreased $2,572.01 due to expenditures exceeding
revenues. Special Education Fund increased $95,277.79 due to revenues sxceeding
expenditures. Pension Fund decreased $2,391.90 due to expenditures exceeding revenues.
Impact Aid Fund decreased $1,042.50 due to expenditures exceeding revenues. Bond
Redemption Fund increased $12,162.51 as a result of revenues exceeding expenditures. Capital
Projects Fund decreased $623,653.93 as a resuit of expenditures exceeding revenues.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the course of the year, the School Board revised the District budget several times. Thes
amendments fall into three categories: :

e Supplemental appropriations approved to prevent budget overruns for unanticipated but

necessary expenses.
e Changes in actual federal revenue receipts versus budgeted amounts. o
« Increases in appropriations, primarily by contingency transfer, to prevent budget overruns.

There were no significant budget changes or budget variances for the year. The supplementai

~ budget changes that were made were due to new or increased funding in federal grants.

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION |

‘By the end of 2016, the District had invested $13,021,986.84 (after depreciation) in a broad range '

of capital assets, including land, buildings, improvements other than buildings and equipment for
governmental activities. (See Table A-3). This amount represents a net increase (including
additions, deletions and depreciation) of $568,986.60, or 4.57%, over the previous year. Primary
capital asset purchases includes the completion of the Energy Efficiency Project).

11



“Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
l.and
CWIP

Other Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings, CWIP
Equipment

Total Other Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Accumulated Depreciation (Prior year)

Accumutated Depreciation .
Total Other Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Total All Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

LONG-TERM DEBT

o Table A-3
FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT 50-3
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
06/30/15 06/30/16 08/30/15 06/30/16
$ 339,431.79 $ 339,431.79
. 3,814,525.18
© 0,407,608.11 - 13,934,652.94
1,229,013.65 1,268,963.65
1,014,183.19 1,100,162.11 58,981.27 74,607.86
1 1,650,804.95 16,303,778.70 58,981.27 74,607.86
(3,090,767.39)  (3,351,761.68) ,
(260,994,29) (269,461.97)  (50,305.83)  (54,358.25)
8,289,043.27 12,682,555.05 8,675.44 20,249.61
12,453,0'00.24 13,021,986.84 8,675.44 20,249.61

At year-end, the District had $1',25_0,000 in General Obligation Bonds and $4,930,000 in Capital
Outlay Certificates. Other obligations include the vacation leave of $7,887.10 and early retirement
of $31,113.75. The net effect from the prior year is increased as shown on Table A-4 beiow.

General Obiligation Bonds
Capital Cutlay Certificates

Early Retirement
Compensated Absences

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Net Increase (Decrease)

. Table A-4
FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT #50-3
Qutstanding Debt and Obligations

Governmental
: Activities
FY2015 FY2016 :
$1,480,000.00 $1,250,000.00 -15.54%
5,145,000.00 4,930,000.00 -4.18%
45,707.25 31,113.75 100.00%
6,678.81 7,887.10 18.09%

$6,677,386.06

$6,219,000.85

-6.86%

The District is liable for the accrued vacation leave payabile to full time year round staff. This
involves one staff member. The School also maintains an early retirement plan, which allows those
meeting certain qualifications, to retire early and receive 75% of their last year's salary in 1

- payment, paid in September of the following year. This plan allows the school to potentially reduce

the overall program cost by hiring lower paid teachers to replace the higher paid teachers. At the
end of FY 2016, the school had 1 teacher that elected the local early retirement option per policy.

12
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Based on fund balances for governmental activities, the District's economic position decreased by
$455,974.16. The fund balance for the General Fund, increased by $66,245.88 or 5.8%. Capital
Outlay and Capital Projects fund balances experienced the largest decrease due the completion of
the Energy Efficiency Project. The Special Education Fund is deficit spending due to new student
needs. SE funding cannot meet the demands. The District did achieve a positive fund balance in
Special Education due to receiving Extra-Ordinary Cost Funds upon application and approval from
the State of South Dakota. ECF funds are not guaranteed each year. The District did experience
a $46,613,483 or 9.9% increase in total property valuation for the 2015 payable 2016 year. While
a change in property valuation does affect the amount of revenue the District can generate from
property taxes, the total amount which can be levied is limited by the State of South Dakota. In
addition, an increase in property valuation does not increase revenues for the General Fund or
Special Education because major revenues for these funds are based on an annual per pupil
allocation that is set by the State. The allocation is based on a combination of local property tax
revenue and state funds. Levies against property valuation determine local effort. This amount is
subtracted from the local need and the difference is provided by the State as state aid. With
regard to General Fund revenues, therefore, increases in local property valuation essentially
increase the local effort and decrease the amount of state aid the District receives if the

ADM/enroliment remains unchanged.

As noted above, one of the District's primary sources of revenue for the General Fund is the per
student allocation received from the State of South Dakota. '

1. The state aid formula for FY 2015 ensured that property taxes plus state aid equaled $4,781.14
per pupil.

2. The state aid formula for FY 2016 ensured that property taxes plus state aid equaled
- $4,876.76.per puplil.

3. Infiscal year ending June 30, 2015, state aid was based either on the average of the 2013 fall -
enroliment of 639.7 and the 2014 fall enroliment of 656.84 (average is 648.27) OR the 2014 fall
enrollment, whichever is greater. Therefore, state aid for FY 15 was based on 656.84 students.

4. Infiscal year ending June 30, 2016, state aid was based either on the average of the 2014 fall
enroilment of 656.84 and the 2015 fall enroliment of 669.7 (average is 663.27) OR the 2015 fall
enrollment, whichever is greater. Therefore, state aid for FY 16 was based on 669.7 students.

Enrollment is projécted to fluctuate for the next several years, As a result, the District is currently
reviewing the projected enroliments to maintain a balanced budget.

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, patrons, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact the Flandreau School District 50-3 Business Office, 600 West Community Drive,

Flandreau, SD 57028.
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3 .
- STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS: .
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable
‘Accolints Receivable
Due from Other Governments
fnventories ‘

Net Pension Asset
Capital Assets:
Land :

Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES:
Pension Related Deferred Outflows
Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES :
Accounts FPayable
Accrued Wages & Benefits Payable
~ Deposits Payable ‘-
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More than Cne Year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related Deferred inflows
Taxes Levied for a Future Period

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION: _
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for;
Capital Qutlay
Special Education
Pension
Debt Service
SDRS Pension Purposes

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities

Activities

Toftal

.$ 2,5659,077.02 $ 120,500.79 $ 2,679,577.81

- 1,420,019.91 1,420,019.91
600.00 7,951.13 8,551.13
163,58145 . 163,581.45
| 3,792.98 3,792.98
710,463.71 710,463.71
339,431.79 o 339,431.79
12,682,555.05 _ 20,249.61 _ 12,702,804.66
17,875,728.93 _ 152494.51 _ 18,028,223.44
1,356,890.62 1,356,890.62
93,181.84 93,181.84
1,450,072.46 1,450,072.46
184,280.30 296.16 184,576.46
441,864.94 441,864.94
| 6,496.48 6,496.48
- 496,570.77 496,570.77
5.722,430.08 5,722,430.08
6,845,146.09 6.792.64 _ 6,851,938.73
1,048,302.80 11,048,302.80
1,385,621.11 1,385,621.11
2,433,923.91 2,433,923 91
6,935,168.68 20,4961  6,955418.29
323,950.95 323,950.95 -
41,386.20 41,386.20
54,138.83 54,138.83
81,073.76 81,073.76
1,019,051.53 - 1,018,051.53
1,591,96144 _ 12545226 _ 1,717,413.70

$10,046,731.30 § 145701.87

$10,192,433.26

The notes to the financial statements are an integrai part of this statement
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3 .
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
- TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION'
JUNE 30, 2016

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 2,097,113.23

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in

the fuhds.
Cost of Assets $ 16,643,210.49

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,621,223.65) 13,021,986.84

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

General Obligation Bonds {1,250,000.00)
Capital Outlay Certificates _ (4,930,000.00)
Compensated Absences (7,887.10)

Early Retirement

(31,113.75)  (6,219,000.85)

Deferred outflows of resources consisting of losses on
refunded debt are not accounted for in the
governmental funds but are reported in the Statement

of Net Position. 93,181.84

Assets such as taxes receivable (delinquent) are not
available to pay for current period expenditures and _
therefore are deferred in the funds. ' 34,398.80

Net Pension Asset reported in the governmental
activities is not an available financial resource and
therefore is not reported in the funds.

Pension related deferred outflows are-.components of
pension asset and therefore are not reported in the

funds,

710,463.71

1,356,800.62 -

Pension related deferred inflows are components of
pension liability and therefore are not reported in the

funds. (1,048,302.80)

$ 10,046,731.39

Net Position - Governmental Funds

 The notes td_ the financial statemehts are an integral part of this statement
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlay expense exceeds depreciation expense:
 Capital Outlays
Depreciation Expense

$ 838,448.57
(269,461.97)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position.
General Obligation Bonds 230,000.00

Capital Outlay Certificates 215,000.00

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses
(compensated absences and early retirement benefits) are
measured by the amounts earned and paid during the year. In
the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items
are different than the amount of financial resources used.

Change in Compensated Absences {1 ,208.29)
Early Retirement Change : 14,593.50

Deferred outflows of resources consisting of losses from
refunding on debt, which are not accounted for in the
governmental funds, are accounted for in the Statement of Net
Position. This amount represents the amount of these charges

expensed during the period.

Governmental funds report property taxes as revenue using the
current financial resources measurement focus, but the
statement of activities includes the property taxes as revenue

_ when earned.

Changes in the pension related deferred outflows/inflows are
direct components of pension liability (asset) and are not
reflected in the governmental funds.

Change in Net Position of Governmental_Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement,
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$ (455,974.16)

568,986.60

445,000.00

(18,636.36)

112,510.60

$ 673678.05




FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTR.ICT NO. 50-3
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Inventory of Donated Food

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Machinery and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS -

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Deposits Payable

Total Current Liabilities.

NET POSITION:

Net Investment in Capitai Assets
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

~n -

JUNE 30, 2016
~ Other
Food Service Enterprise
Fund Fund Total
$ 117,101.49 $ 339930 $ 120,500.79
7,951.13 : 7.951.13
3,792.98 3,792.98
128,845 60 3,399.30 132,244.90
74.607.86 74,607.86
(54,358.25) (54,358.25)
20,249.61 20,249.61 -
149,095.21 3,399.30  152,494.51
: 296.16 296.16
6,496.48 . 6,496.48
6,496.48 206.16 6.792.64
1 20,249.61 20,249.61
122,349.12 3,103.14 125,452.26
'$ 142,508.73° $ 3,103.14 $ 145,701.87




FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Operating Revenue:

Sales:

- To Pupils

. ~To Adults
A la Carte
Other

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Food Service:
Salaries
'Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Repairs and Maintenance Services
Supplies
Cost of Sales-Donated Food
Depreciation-Local Funds

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (l.oss)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):

| aocal Sources:
Investment Earnings

‘State Sources:

Cash Reimbursements
Federal Sources:
Cash Reimbursements
Donated Food
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

Change in Net Position
Net Position- Beginning

NET POSITION - ENDING

Other
Food Service Enterprise
Fund Fund Total
$ 129,513.10 § $ 129,5613.10
9,063.20 ' 9.063.20
42,854.20 - 42,854.20
6,720.00 6,720.00
181,430.50 _6,720.00 188,150.50
13,019.20 4,664.00 17.683.20
4,162.75 636.64 4,799.39
335,689.53 ' ' © 335,689.53
5 900.37 5,900.37
516.62 44448 961.10
15,621.59 15,621.59
4,052.42 4,052.42
378,962.48 5745.12 384,707.60
(197,531.98) 974.88 (196,557.10)
135.38 135.38
12,505.28 2.505.28
191,636.58 191,636.58
16,139.87 16,139.87
210,417.11 210,417.11
12.885.13 974.88 13,860.01
129,713.60 2,128.26 131,841.86
$ 142,598.73 $ 3,103.14 § 145701.87
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS :
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Other
Food Service Enterprise ,
Fund Fund Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: _ _ _ _
Receipts from Customers $ 181,740.31 $ 6,720.00 $ 188,460.31
Payments to Suppliers (342,157.54) (926.54) (343,084.08)
Payments to Employees (17,181.95) (5,300.64) (22,482.59)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (177,599.18) 492.82 (177,106.36)
Cash Flows from Noncapita! Financing Activities:
Operating Subsidies 194,141.86 194,141.86
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of Capital Assets ' (15,626.59) (15,626.59)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities: |
Investment Earnings 135.38 135.38
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash '
Equivalents $ 105147 % 492.82 §  1,544.29
Cash and Cash Equwalents at Beginning of Year $ 116,050.02 $ 290648 § 118,956.50
Cash and Cash Equ;vafents at End of Year 117,101.49 _3,399.30 | 120,500.79
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
. Equivalents $ 105147 § 49282 § 1,544.29
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (197,5631.98) § 974.88  $(196,557.10)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense ‘ 4,052.42 4,052.42
Value of Commodities Used 15,621.59 15,621.59
Change in Assels and Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (561.02) (482.06) (533.08)
Deposits Payable 309.81 309.81
Net Cash Provided (Used} by Operatmg Activities $ (177,599.18) $ 492,82 $ (177,108.36)

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:

Value of Commodities Received . $ 16,139.87

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

Private-Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS: . , | _

Cash and Cash Equivalents § 23484763  $136,370.22
TOTAL ASSETS | 234,847.63 136,370.22
LIABILITIES:

‘Amounts Held for Others 136,370.22
Total Liabilities $136,370.22

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Schelarships ‘ $ 234,847.63

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DlSTRfCT NO. 50-3

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

" FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

 ADDITIONS:
Contributions and Donations

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Other Deductions

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

NET POSITION - ENDING

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Private-Purpose

Trust Funds

$ 6,434.00

6,434.00

10,786.14

10,786.14

(4,352.14)

 239,199.77

$ 234,847.63




FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'NOTE_ 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the School District conform to generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to government entities in the United States of America. - :

a. Financial Reporting Entity

The reporting entity of Flandreau School District No. 50-3, consists of the primary government
(which includes all of the funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that
make up the legal entity, plus those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary
responsibility, even though those fiduciary funds may represent organizations that do not meset the
criteria for inclusion in the financial reporting entity); those organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would
cause the financial reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The School District participates in a cooperative service unit with several other school districts.
See detailed note entitled “Joint Ventures” for specific disclosures. Joint ventures do not meet the
criteria for inclusion in the financial reporting entity as a component unit, but are discussed in these
notes because of the nature of their relationship with the School District. :

b. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting
entity as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-
exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to

external parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources, in a net position form
(assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal
net position). Net position are displayed in three components, as applicable, net investment in
capital assets, restricted (distinguishing between major categories of restrictions), and unrestricted.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and pregram
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the School District and for each
function of the School District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods and
services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements.

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate
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set of seif-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and
proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the School

District or it meets the following criteria:

1. | Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise fund are at
least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and

2. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise fund are at
least 5 percent of the correspondmg total for all governmental and enterprise funds

combined, or-

3. Management has elected to c'Iassify one or more governmental or enterprise funds as major
for consistency in reporting from year to year, or because of public interest in the fund's

operations

The funds of the School District fmancual reporting entity are described below within their
respective fund types:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund - A fund established by South Dakota Codified Laws (SDCL) 1 3-16-3 fo meet all the
general operational costs of the School District, excluding capital outlay fund and special education
fund expenditures. The General Fund is always a major fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. -

Ca'pital Outlay Fund - A fund established by SDCL 13-16-6 to meet expenditures which
result in the lease of, acquisition of or additions to real property, plant or equipment,
textbooks and mstructlonal software. This fund is financed by property taxes. Thisis a

major fund.

Special Education Fund - A fund established by SDCL 13-37-16 to pay the costs for the
special education of all children in need of special assistance and prolonged assistance who
reside within the School- Dlstnct This fund is financed by grants and property taxes. This is

a major fund.

Pension Fund — A fund established by SDCL 13-10-6 for the purpose of paying pensions to
retired employees of school districts, which have established such systems, paying the -
School District’s share of retirement plan contributions, and for funding early retirement
benefits to quahfymg employees. This fund is financed by property taxes. Thisis a major

fund.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs,

The Bond Redemption Fund ~ A fund established by SDCL 13-16-13 to account for the
proceeds of a special property tax restricted to use for the payment of principal and interest
on general obligation bonded debt. The Bond Redemption Fund is the only debt service
fund maintained by the School District. This is a major fund.
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Capital Project Funds — capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by

proprietary funds and frust funds.

The Capital Projects Fund — This fund is maintained by the School District for the purpose of
an Energy Efficiency Project to replace the heating/cooling infrastructure, lighting, science
rooms and bathroom remodeling for the high school. This is a major fund

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds may be used to report any activily for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services. Activities are required to be reported as enterprise funds if any

one of the following criteria is met.

a.  The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net
~ revenues from fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge of
net revenues from fees and charges and the full faith and credit of a related primary
government or component unit—even if that government is not expected to make any
payments—is not payable solely from fees and charges of the activity. (Some debt
may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds but should be considered as
payable "solely” from the revenues of the activity.) :

b.  Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, including
capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered with fees and
charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues.

c.  The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed fo recover its
costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service).

Food Service Fund - A fund used to record financial transactions related to food service
operations. This fund is financed by user charges and grants. This is a major fund. -

The Other Enterprise Fund is an enterprise fund maintained by the School District for the
benefit of students. This fund is financed by user charges. This is a major fund.

Fiduciary Funds:
_ Fiduciary Funds consist of the following sub-categories and are never considered to be major
funds: _ ' ‘

Private Purpose Trust Funds — Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for all other trust
arrangements under which principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations or other
governments. The School District maintains the following private-purpose trust funds:

The Wm & Olive Jellife Scholarship Fund, The Fuller Scholarship Fund, The Rice Scholarship
Fund, The Bechen Scholarship Fund, The Rusch Scholarship Fund, The Dakota Layers
Scholarship Fund, The FFA Scholarship Fund, The F A Wittern Scholarship Fund, The General
School Scholarship Fund, The Masonic Scholarship Fund, Gordan Jones Scholarship Fund, and

Ackerman Scholarship fund
' They are used for the purpose of providing scholarships to students.

Agency Funds - agency funds are used to account for resources held by the School District in a
purely custodial capacity (assets equal fiabilities). Since agency funds are custodial in nature they
do not involve the measurement of results of operations. The School District maintains agency
funds for the following purposes: Student Class Funds, Student Club Funds and Clearing

Accounts.
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¢. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when” revenues and expenditures or expenses
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the

measurement focus.
Measurement Focus:
Government-wide Financial Statements:

in the government-wide Statement of Net Posmon and Statement of Activities, both govemmental
and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus,

applied on the accrual basis of accounting.

Fuhd Financial Sfatements:

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting are applied to governmental funds, while the “economic
resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are applied to the proprietary

and fiduciary fund types.
Basis of Accouhtingﬁ

Govemment-wide Financial Statements.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental and
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. . Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues and related assets generally are recorded when earned (usually
when the right to receive cash vests); and, expenses and related liabilities are recorded when an
obligation is incurred (usually when the obligation to pay cash in the future vests).

Fund Financial Statements:

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their
revenues, including property taxes, generally are recognized when they become measurable and
available. “Available” means resources are collected or to be collected soon enough after the end
of the fiscal year that they can be used to pay the bills of the current period. The accrual period for
the Flandreau School District is 60 days. The revenues, accrued at June 30, 2016 are amounts

due from other governments for grants and taxes.

Under the modified bas:s of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not available.
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Reported deferred revenues are those where asset recognition
criteria have been met but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met.

Expenditures generally are recognized when the related fund fiability is incurred. Exceptions to this
general rule inciude principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recognized when due.

All proprietary funds and fiduciary' funds are accounted for using the accruai basis of accounting.
Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognlzed when

they are incurred.
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d. Interfund Eliminations and Reclassifications

Government-wide Financial Statements:

In the process of aggregating data for the government-wide financial statements, some amounts
reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated or

reclassified, as follows:

1. In order to minimize the grossing-up effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental and
business-type activities columns of the primary government, amounts reported as interfund
receivables and payables have been eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities
columns, except for the net, residual amounts due between govemnmental and business-type
activities, which are presented as Internal Balances.

e. Deposits and Investme_nts:

For the purpose of financial reporting, “cash and cash equivalents” includes all demand and
savings accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with a term to maturity at
date of acquisition of three months or less. Investments in open-end mutual fund shares, or similar
investments in external investment pools, are also considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments classified in the financial statements consist primarily of certificates of deposit whose
term to maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months, and/or those types of investment
authorized by South Dakota Codified Law (SDCL) 4-5-6. As of June 30, 2016, there no
investments are owned by the District.

f. Capital Asseté

Capital assets include land, bu'ildings, machinery and équipment, and all other tangible or intangible
assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single

reporting period. _ :

The accounting treatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are usedin -
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the

government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide Statemernts

Alf capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.
Reported cost values include ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its intended location
and condition for use.  Subsequent to initial capitalization, improvements or betterments that are
significant and which extend the useful life of a capital asset are also capitalized.

For governmental activities Capital Assets, construction-pericd in_terést is not capitalized, in
accordance with USGAAP, while for capital assets used in business-type activities/proprietary fund's
ope_rations, construction period interest is capitalized in accordance with USGAAP.

The total June 30, 2018 balance of capital assets for governmental activities includes
approximately 2.40% for which costs were determined by estimates of the original costs. The total
June 30, 2016 balance of capital assets for business-type activities are valued at original cost.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
government-wide Statement of Activities, with net capital assets reflected in the Statement of Net
Position. Capitalization thresholds (the doliar values above which asset acquisitions are added to
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the capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets
reported in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:

: Threshold Method Life
Land o ALL NA NA
Buildings $ 1500000 Straight Line 5-50 yrs
Improvements other than Buildings 15,000.00 Straight Line 5-50 yrs
Machinery and Equipment : 5,000.00 Straight Line 5-50 yrs
Food Service Machinery and Equipment .1,000.00 Straight Line 10 yrs

Land is an inexhaustible capital asset and is not depreciated.

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital expenditures of the appropriate governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for on the accrual basis, the

same as in the government-wide statements.

g. Long-Term Liabilities:

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the -

government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported
as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term liabilities primarily consist of
compensated absences, capital outlay certificates payable, early retirement benefits payable, and

general obligation bonds payable

In the fund financial statements, debt proceeds are reported as revenues (other financing sources),
while payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures when they become due. The
accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is on the accrual basis, the same in the fund

statements as in the government-wide statements.

h. Program Revenues:

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, reported program revenues derive directly from the
program itself or from parties other than the School District’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole. -
Program revenues are classified into three categories, as follows;

1. Charges for services — These arise from charges to customers, applicants,' or others
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided,

or are otherwise directly affected by the services.
2. Program-specific operating grants and contributions — - These arise from mandatory and

voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, orgamzatlons or

individuals that are restricted for use in a particular program.
3. Program-specific capital grants and contributions — These arise from mandatory and

voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, orgamzatlons or
individuals that are restricted for the acqwsntlon of capital assets for use in a particular

program, -

Propraetarv Funds Revenue and Expense Classaf:cations

In the proprietary fund’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position,
revenues and expenses are classmed in a manner consistent with how they are classified in the
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Statement of Cash Flows. That is, transactions for which related cash flows are reported as capital
and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities are not
reported as components of operating revenues or expenses. '

j. Deferred inflows and Qutflows of Resources:

in addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent consumption of net position that
applies to a future period or periods. These items will not be recognized as an outflow of resources

until the applicable future period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent acquisitions of net position that
applies to a future period or periods. These items will not be recognized as an inflow of resources

until the applicable future period. :

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The School District pools its cash resources for depositing and investing purposes. Accordingly,
the enterprise funds have access to their cash resources on demand. Accordingly, all reported
enterprise fund deposit and investment balances are considered to be cash equivalents for the

purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows.

. Equity Classifications
Government-wide Financial Statements: |
Equity is classified as Net position and is displayed in three components:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the

acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Net Position ~ Cohsists of net position with constraints placed on their use either
by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or taws and regulations of
other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3. Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that do not meet the definition of
‘restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

Fund Financial Statements:.

Governmental fund equity is classiﬁ'ed'as fund balance, and may distinguish between '

Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, and Assigned or Unassigned components. Proprietary
fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary fund
equity (except for Agency Funds, which have no fund equity) is reported as net position held in

~ trust for other purposes.

m. Appficati'on of Net Position:

It is the School District's policy to first use restricted net position, prior to the use of unrestricted net
position, when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net

position are available.
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n. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures:

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the School! District classifies governmental

fund balances as follows:

»  Nonspendable — includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not

in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints.

Restricted — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which

are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to

constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that

are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision

making authority and does not lapse at year-end. '

e  Assigned — includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes
that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance may be assigned by the

~ school board. :

e Unassigned - includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been

classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund baiances in other

governmental funds.

The School District uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit deing this, such
as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the district would first use
committed, then assigned, and lastly, unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when

expenditures are made.

The School District does not have a formal minimum fund baiance policy.

A schedule of fund balances is provided as follows:

: FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
DISCLOSURE OF FUND BALANCES REPORTED ON BALANCE SHEET
: GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS '
JUNE 30, 2016

Capital Special Bond Total
General Qutiay - Education Pension  Redemption Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Eund " Fund Funds

Fund Balances: :
Restricled for ‘
Capital Qutlay $ $315,818.82 § $ $ $ 315818.82
Special Education 36,932.53 36,832.53
Pension ' 53,089.60 . 53,089.60
Bond Redemption . 78,614.05 78,614.05
Assigned fo: i i
Subsequent Years Budget 154,685.00 : ‘ 154,685.00
Unassigned 1,457,973.23 1,457,973.23

Total Fund Balances $1,612,658.23 $2315818.82 $ 36,932.53 $53,08060 $78614.05 §2,097,113.23

0. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense (revenue), information
about the fiduciary net position of the South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS) and additions
to/deletions from SDRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they




are reported by SDRS. School District contributions and net pension liability (asset) are recognized
on an accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE 2 ~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT
RISK AND INTEREST RATE RISK:

" The School District follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to
maximize cash management efficiency and returns. Various restrictions on deposits and
investments are imposed by statutes. These restrictions are summarized below.

Deposits - The School District’s deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by
SDCL 4-6A-1, 13-16-15, 13-16-15.1 and 13-16-18.1. Qualified depositories are required by SDCL
4-8A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their other assets, eligible collateral having a value
equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit accounts which exceed deposit insurance such
as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible securities, a qualified public depository may
furnish irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by federal home loan banks accompanied by
written evidence of that bank’s public debt rating which may not be less than "AA" or a qualified
public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a corporation authorized to do business in

South Dakota.

Investments ~ In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits school district funds to be invested only in (a)
securities of the United States and securities guaranteed by the United States Government either
directly or indirectly; or {b) repurchase agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a)
above: or in shares of an open-end, no-load fund administered by an investment company whose
investments are in securities described in (a) above and repurchase agreements described in (b)
above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9 requires investments to be in the physical custody of the political
subdivision or may be deposited in a safekeeping account with any bank or trust company
designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal agent.

Credit Risk - State law limits eligfble investments for the School District, as discussed above. The
School District has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. :

As of June 30, 20186, the School District had the following investments:

_ External Investment Pools: _ _
SDFIT - Government Cash Reserves  Unrated  § 464,749.51 |

The South Dakota Public Funds Investment Trust (SDFIT) is an external investment pool created
for South Dakota local government investing purposes. It is regulated by a nine member board
with representation from municipalities, school districts, and counties. The net asset value of the
SDFIT money market account (3CR) is kept at one dollar per share by adjusting the rate of return
on a daily basis. Earnings are credited to each account on a monthly basis. -

Concentration of Credit Risk — The School District places no limit on the amount that may be
invested in any one issuer. More than 5% of the School District’s investments are in South Dakota

Public Funds investment Trust.

Interest Rate Risk — The School District does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from

increasing interest rates.

Assignment of Investment Income - State law allows income from deposits and investments to
be credited to either the General Fund or the fund making the investment. The School District's
policy is to credit all income from investments to the fund making the investments.
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NOTE 3 —~ RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Receivables and payables are not aggregated in these financial statements. The School District
expects all significant receivables to be collected within one year. No allowance for estimated
uncollectible receivables has been established, as the District believes all receivables are

collectible.

NOTE 4 - INVENTORY

Inventory of the proprietary fund is valued at the lower of cost or market. The cost valuation
method is the first in, first out method. . Donated commaodities are valued at estimated market value

based on the USDA price list at date of receipt.

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, inventory items are initiaily
recorded as assets and charged to expense in the various functions of government as they are .

consumed.

In the governmental fund financial statements, inventories consist of an immaterial balance of
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
individual inventory items are consumed. No material inventories were on hand in the

governmental funds as of June 30, 20186.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied on or before each October 1, attach as an enforceable lien on property,
and become due and payable as of the following January 1, and are payable in two instalments on
or before the foliowing April 30 and October 31. The county bills and collects. the School District's

taxes and remits them to the School District. ' .

School District property tax revenues are recognized to the extent that they are used to finance
each year's appropriations. Revenue related to current year property taxes receivable which is not
intended to be used to finance the current year's appropriations and therefore are-not susceptible
to accrual has been reported as deferred revenue in both the fund financial statements and the
government-wide financial statements. Additionally, in the fund financial statements, revenue from
property taxes may be limited by any amount not coflected during the current fiscal period or within

the availability period. : .
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NOTE 8 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended.June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Primary Govwernment Balance Balance
‘ June 30, 2015 increases Decreases June 30, 2016
Gowernmental Activities: -
Capital Assets, not being depreciated: _ _
Land $  339,431.79 $ $  339,431.79
Construction in Work in Progress . 3,814,625.18 561,983.65  4,375,488.83
Total, not being depreciated 4,153,958.97 561,983.65  4,376,488.83 . 339,431.79
Capital Assets, being depreciated: _
Buildings 9,407,608.11 $ 4,527,044.83 13,934,652.94
Improvements Other than Buildings 1,229,013.65 39,050.00 1,268,963.65
Machinery and Equipment 1,014,183.19 85,978.92 1,100,182, 11
Total, being depreciated 11,650,804.95 4,652,973.75 16,303,778.70

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings (2,203,216.89)

(132,962.58)
(74,561.77)

(2,336,179.47)
(690,869.56)

Improvements Other than Buildings

(618,307.79) -

Machinery and Equipment (532,237.00)

{61,937.62) {594,174.62)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,351,761.68)

(269,461.97) (3,621,223.85)

Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net 8,299,043.27

4,383,511.78 12,682,555.05

Total | $ 12,453,000.24 $

4,945,475.43 $4,376,488.83 $ 13,021,986.84

. Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Gowernmental Activities:

Instruction $ 80,681.91
Support Senices 80,426.36
Cocurricular 108,353.70
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $  269,461.97
Business - Type Activity:
Balance Balance

_ July 1, 2015 Increases Decreases  _June 30, 2016
Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Machinery and Equipment $ 58,081.27 $ 15626.59 $ $ 74,607.86
Accumulated Depreciation: '
Machinery and Equipment (50,305.83) _ (4,052.42) {54,358.25)
Business-type activity capital assets, net § 867544 $ 1157417 § $  20,249.67
**Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Business-type Activity :
Food Service
Total Depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 4,052.42
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'NOTE 7 - LONG -TERM LIABILITIES

A summary of the changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

General Capital :
Obligation Outlay Early Compensated
Governmental Activities Bonds Certificates Retirement Absences Totals

Long-Term Liabilities
Payable, June 30,2015  $ 1,480,000.00 §$ 514500000 §$ 4570725 §$ 6,678.81 $ 6,677,386.06

Additions : 31,11375 5,457.02 36,870.77
Deletions 230,000.00 215,000.00 4570725 424873 494,955.98

Long-Term Liabilities ¢ 4 250,000.00 - $ 4,930,00000 § 3111375 § 7,887.10 $ 6,219,000.85
Payable, June 30,2016

Due within One Year $ 240,000.00 $ 220,000.0d $ 3111375 § 5.457.02 $ 49657077

Compensated absences for governmental activities typically have been liquidated from the General
Fund. Early Retirement Benefits payable for governmental activities typically have been liquidated
from the Pension Fund and from the General Fund.

Liabilities payables at June 30, 2016 are comprised of the following:

General Obhgatlon Bonds:
Series 2015 General Obligation Refundmg Bonds issued April 7, 2015, maturing June 30,
2022, with annual interest rate of 2.0%. Semi-annual payments from Debt Senice Fund. $ 1,250,000.00

Capital Outlay Certificates:
Series 2015 Capital Outlay Refunding Certificates issued April 7, 2015, maturing June 30,
2022, interest rate of 2.0%. Semi-annual payments made from the Capital Outlay Fund. 945,000.00

Series 2013 Limited Tax Obligation Certificates, issued December §, 2013, maturing June
1, 2033, interest rates from 1.60 to 4,30%, depending on length to maturity of the
individual certificate, Semi-annual payments made from the Capital Outlay Fund. _ 3,985,000.00

Compensated Abse nces:

Vacation pay which is payable from the General Fund. 7,887.10
Early Ret:rement Payable:
~ Obligation to individuals who fall under the early rettrement plan of the Flandreau School
District. Payments are made to the retiree in the year following retirement. Payments
31,113.75

are made from the Pension and General Fund.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for alf debt outstanding, other than compensated
absences, as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

General Capital Outiay Early

Year Obligation Bonds Certificates Retirement . Total

Ending Principal Interest Principal Interest F’rihcigal Interest

2017 $ 240,00000 $ 2500000 $ 22000000 $§ 166,807.50 $31,113.75 § 49111375 $ 191,607.50

2018 240,000.00 20,200.00 225,000.00 162,367.50 465,000.00 182,567.50

2019 250,000.00  15,400.00 230,000.00 157,586.26 480,000.00 172,986.26

2020 255,000.00 10,400.00 240,000.00 152,705.00 495,000.00 163,105.00

2021 265,000.00 5,300.00 240,000.00 147,655.00 505,000.00 152,955.00
2022-28 1,375,000.00 - 630,467.50 1,375,000.00 630,467.50
2027-31 1,640,000.00 374,267.50 1,640,000.00 374.267.50
2032-38 760,000.00 49,450.00 760,000.00 49,450.00

Total $1.250,00000 $ 76,300.00 $4,930,000.00 $1.841106.268 $ 3111375 $6,211,113.75 $1,917,406.26

NOTE 8 — RESTRICTED NET POSITION

The following table shows the net position restricted for other purposes as shown on the Statement
- of Net Position: S

Major Purposes Restricted by Amount
Capital Outlay Purposes  Law $  323,950.95
Special Education Law 41,3886.20
Pension Purposes Law 54,138.83
SDRS Pension Purposes Law 1,019,051.53
Debt Senice Purposes . Debt Covwenants 81.073.78
Total Restricted Net Position $ 1,519,601.27

NOTE 9 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfer for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Transfers to:

Transfers From: _ General Fund Capital Qutlay Fund
Major Funds: C _ '
Capital Projects Fund $ _ ~$ - 79,415.50

A transfer of $79,415.50 was made to the Capital Qutlay Fund from Capital Projects Fund to close
- out Capital Projects Fund due to project completion.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Information: _
All employees, working more than 20 hours per week during the school year, participate in the

South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS), a cost sharing, multiple employer public employee
retirement system established to provide retirement benefits for employees of the State of South
Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability and survivor
benefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after three years of credited service.
Authority for establishing, administering and amending plan provisions are found in South Dakota
- Codified Law 3-12. The SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
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statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the
SDRS, PO Box 1098, Pierre, SD 57501-1098 or by calling (605) 773-3731. -

Benefits Provided: '
SDRS has three different classes of employees, Class A, Class B public safety and Class B

judicial. Class A retirement benefits are determined as 1 .7 percent prior to 2008 and 1.55 percent
thereafter of the employee’s final 3-year average compensation times the employee's years of
service. Employees with 3 years of service are eligible to retire at age 55. Class B public safety
benefits are determined as 2.4 percent for service prior to 2008 and 2.0 percent thereafter of
employee final average compensation. Class B judicial benefits are determined as 3.733 percent
for service prior to 2008 and 3.333 percent thereafter of employee final average compensation. All
Class B employees with 3 years of service are eligible to retire at age 45. Employees are eligible
for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service. Three years of service is
required for nonservice-related disability eligibility, Disability benefits are determined in the same
manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an actuarial reduction. Death

benefits are a percent of the employee's final average salary.

The annual increase in the amount of the SDRS benefits payable one each July 1 is indexed to the -
consumer price index (CPI) based on SDRS funded status:
+ |fthe SDRS market value funded ratio is 100% or more —3.1% COLA
o Ifthe SDRS market value funded ratio is 80.0% to 99.9%, index with the CP
o 90.0% to 99.9% funded — 2.1% minimum and 2.8% maximum COLA
o 80.0% to 90.0% funded — 2.1% minimum and 2.4% maximurn COLA
¢ Ifthe SDRS market value funded ratio is less than 80% - 2.1% COLA |
All benefits except those depending on the Member's Accumulated Contributions are annually

increased by the Cost-of-Living Adjustment.

Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute the following percentages of their
salary to the plan; Class A Members, 6.0% of salary; Class B Judicial Members, 9.0% of salary;
and Class B Public Safety Members, 8.0% of salary. State statute aiso requires the empioyer to
contribute an amount equal to the employee’s contribution. State statute also requires the
employer to make an additional contribution in the amount of 6.2 percent for any compensation
exceeding the maximum taxable amount for the social security for general employees only. The
School District's share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018,
2015, and 2014 were $195,448.35, $183,496.75, and $181,797.75, respectively, equal fo the

required contributions each year.

Pension Liabilities (Assets). Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Outflows of

Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources to Pensions:
At June 30, 2015, SDRS is 104.1% funded and accordingly has a net pension asset. The
proportionate shares of the components of the net pension asset of South Dakota Retirement

System, for the School District as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Proportionate share of net position restricted for
pension benefits ' $ 18,051,922.34

Less proportionate share of total pension assets 17,341,458.62

Proportionate share of net pension asset $ 710,463.71

At June 30 2018, the School District reported an asset of $710,463.71 for its proportionate share of
the net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured.as of June 30, 2015 and the total
pension asset used to calculate the net pension asset was based on a projection of the School's
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating entities, At
June 30, 2015, the School District's proportion was: .1675114%, which is an decrease of
.0057555% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.
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For the year ended June 30, 2016, the School District recognized pension revenue of $100,559.00.

At June 30, 2016, the School District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources: :

. Deferred Qutflows Deferfed inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experiehce_ $ 145,470;68 $

Changes in assumption . . 563,353.01
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 434,010.23 1,048,302.80
Changes in proportion and difference between District '
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 18,608.35
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 195,448.35
TOTAL | $  1,356,890.62 $ 1,048,302.80

$195 448.35 reported as deferred outflow of resources related fo pensions resulting from School
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in

pension expense (revenue) as follows:

Year Ended June 30.:

2016 | $  33,664.93
2017 . 33,664.93
2018 (90,567.85)
2019 - 117,769.11
TOTAL : % 9453112

Actuarial Assumptions: ' B
" The total pension liability (asset) in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.25 percent
Salary Increases 5.83 percent at entry to 3.87 percent after 30 years of service

Investment Rate of Return . 7.25 percent through 2016 and 7.50 percent thereafter, net of
pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table for males and females, as
appropriate.
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the resuits of an

actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2011. The mortality
assumptions were revised based on an extension of the experience study including mortality

experience through June 30, 2013.
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Investment portfolio management is the statutory responsibility of the South Dakota Investment
Coungcil (SDIC), which may utilize the services of external money managers for management of a
portion of the portfolio. SDIC is governed by the Prudent Man Rule (i.e., the council should use the
same degree of care as a prudent man). Current SDIC investment policies dictate limits on the
percentage of assets invested in various types of vehicles (equities, fixed income securities, real
estate, cash, private equity, etc.). The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015
(see the discussion of the pension plan’s investment policy) are summarized in the following table

using geometric means:

_ Target L.ong-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global Equity 61.0% 4.5%
Fixed Income 27.0% ' 1.8%
Real Estate 10.0% 5.2%
Cash ' - 2.0% 0.8%

Total 100.0%

Discount Rate: o _ ' -
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability (asset) was 7.25 percent through 2017

and 7.50% thereafter. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that matching
employer contributions from will be made at rates equal to the member rate. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine

the total pension liability (asset).

Sensitivity of liability (asset} to changes in the discount rate:

The following presents the School District’s proportionate share of net pension liability (asset)
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent through 2017 and 7.50 percent thereafter, as
well as what the School's proportionate share of the net pension liabflity (asset) would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.25/6.50%) or 1-percentage -

point higher (8.25/8.60%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease " Rate - Increase

School District's proportionate share of

the net pension liability (asset) $ 1,788,229.21 $ (710,463.71) § (2,747,932.60)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position; :
Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued

SDRS financial report.
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NOTE 11 - JOINT VENTURES

The School District participates in the Prairie Lake Educational Cooperative, a cooperative service '
unit (co-op) formed for the purpose of providing educational services to the member schoot districts.

The members of the co-op and their relfative percentage participation in the co-op are as follows:

Baltic 8.00 %
Chester _ 590
Colman-Egan 5.35
Dell Rapids - 1494
Flandreau 1436
Garretson - 564
Howard 8.39
Madison Central 1555 .
Oldham-Ramona 3.58
Rutland o 3.21
Tri-Valley 14.08

The co-op's governing board is composed of one representative from each member school district,
who is a school board member. The board is responsible for adopting the co-op's budget and
setting service fees at a level adequate to fund the adopted budget. :

The School District retains no equity in the net poéition. of the co-op, but does have a responsibility
to fund deficits of the co-op in proportion to the relative participation described above..

Separate financial statements for this joint venture are available from Prairie Lakes Educational
Cooperative.

At June 30, 20186, this joint venture had total assets of $140,840.086, total liabilities of $87,044.17,
and net position of $53,795.89. ' ' '

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During
the period ended June 30, 2016, the School District managed its risks as follows:

Employee Health Insurance
The School District purchases health insurance for its employees from a commercial insurance

carrier. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the
past three years.

Liabilitv Insurance '
The School District purchases liability insurance for risks related to torts; theft of, or damage to

property; and errors and omissions of public officials, injuries to employees and natural disasters
from a commercial insurance carrier. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded

" the liability coverage during the past three years.

Worker's Compensation
The school district purchases liability insurance for worker's compensation from a commercial

carrier. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the
past three years. :
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Unemployment Benefits
During the year ended June 30, 2016, no claims were filed for unemployment benefits. At June 30,

2016, no claims had been filed for unemployment benefits and none are anticipated in the next fiscal

year.

NOTE 13 — FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT EDUCATION FOUNDATION

The Flandreau School District Education Foundation is a nonprofit organization formed April 30,
1999 by members of the community to accept contributions to be used for the benefit of the School
District. The Foundation is a Component Unit of the Primary Government but is not reported as a

Component Unit due to the following:

The Foundation had no assets at June 30, 2016. However, the organization will continue to exist,
in case donations are made in the future. The Foundation's Board of Directors is made up of

members of the school board.

NOTE 14- EARLY RETIREMENT PLAN

The School District maintains an early retirement plan for certified teachers. The plan is available
to employees who choose early retirement after age 55 and have at least twenty years of
continuous service with the District. Under the plan, the District will pay 75% of the current salary
contract. Such amounts are payable in one installment, paid in September of the following year.
Payments were made for early retirement to one eligible employee for a total amount of

$45,752.25 during the year.

NOTE 15 — SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES - LITIGATION

At June 30, 2016, the School District was not involved in any litigation.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

" Middle/Junior High

AR

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016
Actual
Amounts Variance
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
Revenues:
Revenue from Local Sources:

Taxes:

Ad Valorem Taxes $1,129,540.00 $1,129,540.00 §$ 1,147,266.17 § 17,726.17

Prior Years' Ad Valorem Taxes 15,000.00 15,000.00 20,150.35 5,150.35

Tax Deed Revenue 26,845.94 26,845.94

Utility Taxes 86,400.00 86,400.00 82,106.74 (4,293.26)

Penalties and Interest on Taxes 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,674.45 (325.55)

Earnings on Investments and Deposit: 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,272.31 272.31

Cocurricular Activities: _ _

Admissions 24,000.00 24,000.00 24,896.16 896.16

Pupil Organization Membership 3,200.00 3,200.00 2,850.00 (350.00)

Rentals 1,000.00 1,000.00 825.00 (175.00)

Other Pupil Activity Income 600.00 600.00 1,050.00 450.00

Other Revenue from Locai Sources:

Rentats ‘600.00 $00.00 1,100.00 500.00

Contributions and Donations - _ 50,000.00 55,150.00 5,150.00

Medicaid Indirect Services . 40,000.00 40,000.00 11,101.73 (28,898.27)

Qther 38,712.00 38,712.00 37,430.64 (1,281.36)

Revenue from infermediate Sources ‘ . _

County Sources: ‘ _

County Apportionment 120,000.00 120,000.00 122,902.26 2,902.26
- Revenue from State Sources!

Grants-in-Aid: ‘ '
Unrestricted Grants-in-Aid 2,280,595.00  2,280,585.00 2,229,766.15 (50,828.85)
Restricted Grants-in-Aid 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,000.00 (500.00)

Qther State Revenue 266.46 266.46

Revenue from Federal Sources:

Restricted Grants-in-Aid Received -

Directly from Federal Government 41,917.00 - 41,917.00 42,197.00 280.00

Restricted Grants-in-Aid Received from _

Federal Government through the Sta 214,510.00 249,036.00 230,666.37 (9,369.83)
Total Revenues 4.003,574.00  4,088,100.00 4,052,517.73 (35,582.27)
Expenditures:

Instruction: -

Regular Programs:

Elementary School 787,026.00 836,321.00 945,739.57 (109,418.57)

680,527.00 703,597.00 571,867.39  131,729.61



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

- FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

High School
Special Programs:
Educationally Deprived
Support Services - Pupils:
Guidance
Health
Support Services - Instructional Staff:
Improvement of Instruction
Educational Media

Support Services - General Administration:

Board of Education
Executive Administration

Support Services - School Administration:

Office of the Principal
Support Services - Business:
Fiscal Services
" Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Food Service
Cocurricular Activities:
Male Activities
Female Activities
Transportation
Combined Activities
~ Contingencies
Total Expenditures

. Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer In '
Compensation for Sale of

General Capital Assets

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2015
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2016

Actual
Amounts Variance
~ Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) - (Negative}
727,900.00 738,100.00 689,303.54 48,796.46
150,343.00 174,114.00 162,940.00 11,174.00
91,620.00 92,756.00 90,769.95 1,986.05
" 4,150.00 5,150.00 4,525.75 624.25
17,291.00 33,046.00 28,526.65 451935
168,553.00 170,828.00 151,741.77 19,086.23
50,350.00 | 53,850.00 51,527.43 2.322.57
125,417.00 130,552.00 123,753.41 6,798.59
297.466.00 300,‘876.00 276,913.63 24,962.37
143,703.00 144,838.00 137,735.38 7,102.62
625,530.00 628,940.00 606,530.22 22,409.78
197,600.00 197,600.00 153,088.36 44 511.64
18,836.00 18,836.00 15,670.11 3,165.89
50,209.00 50,209.00 48,549.68 - 1,659.32
32,153.00 32,153.00 31,852.99 300.01
44,100.00 44,100.00 43,950.08 149.92
77,886.00 79,386.00 78,764.10 621.90
15,000.00 ' '
4,305,660.00  4,435,252.00 4,212,750.01 222,501.99
{302,086.00) (347,152.00) (160,232.28) 186,919.72
22299600  222,996.00 222,996.00
348216 3,482.16
222,996.00 222,896.00 226,478.16 3,482.16
(79,090.00) (124,156.00) 66,245.88  190,401.88
1,083,657.49  1,083,657.49 1,083,657.49
$1,004,567.49 $ 959,501.49 § 1,149,903.37 $190,401.88




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS
CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND '
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Actual
Amounts Variance
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
Revenues: o
| Revenue from Local Sources:
I Taxes: :
Ad Valorem Taxes $ - 999,000.00 $ 99900000 § 999,17741 177.41
| Prior Years' Ad Valorem Taxes 6,000.00 6,000.00 - 11,153.66 5,153.66
: Penalties and Interest on Taxes 500.00 500.00 1,248.21 748.21

Earnings on Investments and Deposits 300.00 300.00 292.78 (7.22)

" Other Revenue from Local Sources:
Contributions and Donations 1,559.25 1,559.25
Other : 1,352.00 1,352.00
Total Revenue 1,005,800.00 1,005,800.00 1,014,783.31 §,983.31
Expenditures:
Instruction:

Regular programs: :

Elementary 17,000.00 17,000.00 11,664.50 5,335.50

Middle/dunior High 55,000.00 55,000.00 54,021.28 978.72

High School 183,000.00 183,000.00 176,497.20 6,502.80
Support Services - Instructional Staff: .

Educational Media _ 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,434.02 565.98

Support Services - Business: : _

Figcal Services 13,700.00 13,700.00 B8,944.98 4,755.02
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 159,000.00 150,556.00 8,444.00
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 18§5,200.00 185,200.00 160,262.16 24,937.84
Pupil Transportation 139,000.00 139,000.00 117,305.96 21,694.04

Debt Services 386,800.00 386,800.00 386,747.50 52.50

Cocurricular Activities:

Male Activities 14,700.00 14,700.00 11,909.47 2,790.53

- Female Activities 2,200.00 2,200.00 1,637.10 562.90

.Combined Activities 8,200.00 §,200.00 6,790.65 1,409.35
Total Expenditures 1,015,800.00 1,174,800.00 1,086,770.82 78,029.18
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)

Expenditures (169,000.00) (81,987.51) 87,012.49
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfer In 79,415.50 79,415.50
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses): 79,415.50 79,415.50
‘Net Change in Fund Balances (169,000.00) (2,572.01) = 166,427.99
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2015 318,390.83 318,390.83 318,390.83

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2016
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

. FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BAS[S
SPECIAL EDUCATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Revenues:
Revenue from Local Sources:
Taxes:

Ad Valorem Taxes
Prior Years' Ad Valorem Taxes

Penalties and Interest on Taxes
" Earnings on Investment and Deposits
Tuition and Fees: .
. Services Provided by Other LEA's
Medicaid Direct Services
Medicaid Indirect Services
Revenue from State Sources:
Grants-in-Aid:
Restricted Grants-in-Aid -
Other State Aid
Revenue from Federal Sources:
Unrestricted Grants-in-Aid Received
Directly from Federal Government
Restricted Grants-in-Aid Received from
Federal Government through State
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Special Programs:
Programs for Specnal Education
Support Services
Pupils:
Health
Psychological
Speech Pathology
Student Therapy Services
Support Services - instructional Staff:
Improvement of Instruction
Support Services - Special Education:
Administrative Costs '
Transportation Costs _
Other Special Education Costs

Total Expendifures

Net Change in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2015
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2016

Actual
Amounts Variance
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) {Negative)
$ 605771.00 $ 605771.00 -$ 624,062.60 18,291.60
4,000.00 4,000.00 6,259.84 2,259.84
1,000.00 1,000.00 711.23 (288.77)
200.00 200.00 42.75 (157.25)
75,000.00 75,000.00 (75,000.00)
. .7,000.00 7,000.00 9,438.17 . 2,438.17
9,300.00 9,300.00 2,655.00 (6,645.00)
242,514.00 421,814.00 537,915.00 116,101.00
' 539.24 539.24
14,000.00 14,000.00 13,158.89 (841.11) '
149,478.00 149,478.00 149,478.00
1108,263.00 1,287,563.00 1,344,260.72 56,697.72
742,340.00 862,340.00 763,510.74 98,829.26
8,000.00 15,000.00 11,728.10 3,271.90
52,000.00 52,000.00 44,614.81 7,385.19
144,450.00 165,450.00 157,904 .45 7,645.55
42,000.00 73,300.00 67,588.50 5,711.680
1,400.00 1,400.00 560.00 840.00
144,772.00 144,772.00 84,804.06 59,967.94
57,000.00 57,000.00 73,626.40 (16,626.40)
144,500.00 144 500,00 = 44,645.87 99,854.13
1 ,336.462.00 1,515,762.00 1,248,982.93 266,779.07
(228,199.00)  (228,199.00) 95,277.79 323,476.79
(68,345.26) (58,345.26) _ (58,345.26)

ey

$ (286,544.26) $(286,544.26) $ 36,932.53 $ 323,476.79




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS

PENSION FUND

~ FORTHE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Revenues:
Revenue from Local Sources:
Taxes: .
. Ad Valorem Taxes
Prior Years' Ad Valorem Taxes

Penalties and Interest on Taxes
Earnings on Investments and Deposits

Total Revenue -

Expenditures
Instruction:
Regular programs:

Elementary

Middle/Junior High

High School -
Nonprogrammed Charges:

Early Retirement Payments

Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2015

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2016

Actual
Amounts Variance
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)

$ 134,355.00 $ 134,355.00 $130,585.02 $ (3,769.98)

1,311.61 1,311.61
151.13 151.13
100.00 100.00 57.59 (42.41)
134455.00 13445500 _ 132,105.35 __ (2,349.65)
3574500 3574500  35745.00
23,000.00 2300000  23,000.00
30,000.00  30,000.00  30,000.00
4571000 4581000 _ 4575225 57.75
13445500  134,555.00 _ 134,497.25 57.75
(100.00)  (2,391.90)  (2,291.90)
5548150 5548150 _ 5548150

$ 55,481.50 $ 5538150 $ 53089.60 $ (2,291.90)
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Schedule of Required Sdpplementafy Information
FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION

LIABILITY (ASSET)

South Dakota Retirement System

2015

2016

District's proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) 0.173266%%

District's proportionate share of net

pension liability (asset) $ (1,248,317)

District's covered-employee payroll $ 3,029,960
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage T
of its covered-employee payroll ' -41.20%
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension

107.3%

liability (asset)

0.1675114%

$  (710,464)

$ 3,058,271
-23.23%

- 104.1%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date
of the collective net pension liability (asset) which is 6/30 of the previous fiscal year.




Schedule of Requi.red Supplementary Information
FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50.3

SCHEDULE OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

South Dakota Retirement System

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficienby (excess)

District's coverad-employee payroil

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

51

2014 2015 2016
§ 181798 § 183497 $ 195448
§ 181798 § 183497 § 195448
$ $ 3
$3,020,060 $3,058,271  $3,257,454

6.00% 6.00% 5.00%



. FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedules of Budgetary Comparisons for the General Fund
And for each major Special Revenue Fund with a legally required budget

NOTE 1 - BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The School District followed these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in the financial statements:

1. Prior to-the first regular board meeting in May of each year the board causes to be
prepared a proposed budget for the next fiscal year according to the budgetary standards

prescribed by the Auditor General.

2. The proposed budget is considered by the board at the first regular meeting held in the
month of May of each year.

3. The proposed budget is published for public review no later than July 15 each year.
4. Public hearings are held to solicit taxpayer input prior to the approval of the budget.

5. Before October 1 of each year, the. board must approve the budget for the ensuing fiscal
year for each fund, except fiduciary funds.

6. After adoption by the school board, the operating budget is legally binding and actual
expenditures of each fund cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except as indicated in

number 8.

7. Aline item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a fine item may
not exceed 5 percent of the total school district budget and may be transferred by
resolution of the board to any other budget category, except for capital outlay, that is
deemed insufficient during the year. No amount of expenditures may be charged directly

to the contingency line item in the budget.

8. Ifitis determined, during the year, that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state
statute allows the adoption of supplemental budgets when moneys are available to

increase legal spending authority. _

"~ 9. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered by resolution of the
* board.

10. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund.

11. Budgets for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

-12. The following reconciles the USGAAP Basis fund balance to the Budgetary Basis fund
balance:
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Year Ended

6/30/2016
General Fund:
USGAAP Basis Fund Balance $ 1,612,658.23
Reconciling items:
Impact Aid Fund Balance $ 462,754.86
Net Adjustment to GAAP Basis Fund Bafance 462,754.86
Budgetary Basis Fund Balance ' B 1,149,903.37

NOTE 2 - GAAP/BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING BASIS DIFFERENCES

1. The financial statements prepared in conformity with USGAAP present capital outlay
expenditure information in a separate category of expenditures. Under the budgetary
basis of accounting, capital outlay expenditures are reported within the function to
which they relate. For example, the purchase of a new schoo! bus would be reported
as a capital outlay expenditure on the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, however in the Budgetary RSI
Schedule, the purchase of a school bus would be reported as an expenditure of the
Support Services-Business/Pupil Transportation function of government, along with all
other current Pupil Transportation refated expenditures.

2. The budgetary basis comparison sCheduIé for the General Fund includes only the
- budgeted amounts for the General Fund, and does not include any amounts for the

blended Impact Aid Fund.
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Pass-Through Expenditure

-CFDA Grantor's Amount
Number Number 2016
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Pass-Through the SD Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Non-cash Assistance; (Commodities)
Nationa! Schoo! Lunch Program 10.556 ~ N/A $ 16,139.87
Cash Assistance: (Note 3) , _
School Breakfast Program - 10.553 - N/A 34,449.22
National School Lunch Program 10.555 NA 157,187.36
Total Child Nutrition Cluster - 207,776.45
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 N/A 15,668.37
Totai U.S. _Department of Agriculture 223,444.82
U.S. Department of Education:
Direct Federal Funding: -
“Impact Aid (Note 4) 84.041 N/A 236,154.89
Indian Education - Grants to Local Educational Agencies  84.060 N/A 42,197.00
Pass-Through the SD Department of Education
Title | Cluster:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 N/A 172,567.00
Title Hi English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 N/A 1,100.00
Improving Teacher Quality Grants 84.367 N/A 50,331.00
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 N/A 144,857.00
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 - N/A 4,621.00
Total Special Education Cluster: 149,478.00
Total U.S. Department of Education 651,827.89
$875,272.71

GRAND TOTAL




FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016
(continued)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation |
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal

award activity of the School District under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) . Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the School District, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the School District.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies )
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. The School
District has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform

Guidance.
Note 3: Federal Reimbursement | : _

Federal reimbursements are not based upon specific expenditures. Therefore, the amounts reported
here represent cash received rather than federal expenditures.

Note 4: Major Federal Financial Assistance Program
This represents a major federal financial assistance program.
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QUAM, BERGLIN & POST, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
110 WEST MAIN — P.O. BOX 426
ELK POINT, SOUTH DAKOTA 57025

(605) 356-3374

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. :
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

School Board _
Flandreau School District No. 50-3
Moody County, South Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Flandreau School District No. 50-3, Moody County, South Dakota (School
District), as of June 30, 2016 and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements which collectively comprise the School District’s basic financial statements and have

issued our report thereon dated February 20, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the _
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of

Flandreau School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the School District's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal controt was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section, and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were nof identified. Given these limitatons, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency
in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and
Questioned Costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency. We consider the deficiency
described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as item

number 2016-001 to be a significant deficiency.




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School District's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

School District's Response to Fihdings

The Flandreau School District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Corrective Plan of Action. The School District's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express

no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal controt and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
However, as required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report is a matter of public

record and its distribution is not limited.

Cﬁu@% éﬁ%_& !4:—#"‘30. |

Quém, Berglin & Post, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

February 20, 201_7
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QUAM BERGLIN & POST, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
110 WEST MAIN - P.O. BOX 426
ELK POINT, SOUTH DAKOTA 57025

(605) 366-3374

: INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL |
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

School Board
Flandreau School District No. 50-3
Moody County, South Dakota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Flandreau School District No. 50-3, Moody County, South Dakota (School
District) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material -
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The School
District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management s Respons:bh’.'ty

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

- Auditor’s Responsibility

~ Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School District’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative -
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Schoot District's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the,

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Flandreau

School District’'s compliance.




Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Flandreau School District No. 50-3 complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major

faderal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Report-on Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Flandreau School District No. 50-3 is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School
District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance, and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Flandreau School

District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deﬁc:ency in internal controf over compliance is a deficiency, ora
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. -

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the resuits of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this repart is not suitable for any other purposes. As
required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report and our report on compliance for each
major federal program are matters of public record and their distribution is not limited.

Céemqq &%*Wﬁo“

Quam, Berglin & Post, P.C. o
Certified Public Accountants 7 B

‘February 20, 2017
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

PRIOR FEDERAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT FINDINGS:

There were no prior federal audit findings.

PRIOR OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS:

Prior Findina Number 2015-001:

A significant deficiency in internal controls was reported for a lack of segregation of duties for
~ revenues, expenditures and payroll. This comment results from the size of the district, which
precludes staffing at a level sufficient to provide an ideal environment for internal controi.

Corrective Acfion Plan:

This prior audit comment has not been corrected and is being restated as a significant deficiency
under finding number 2016-001. : - '




FLANDREAU SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 50-3
SCHEDULE OF CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RESULTS:

Financial Statements

a.

b.

C.

An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

A significant deficiency was disclosed by our audit of the financial statements for a lack of
segregation of duties for revenues, as discussed in finding number 2016-001.

Our audit did not disclose any noncempliance which was material to the financial statements.

Federal Awards

d.

An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance with the requirements applicable to major
programs. ' ' '

Our audit did not disclose any audit findings that need to be disclosed in accordance with the

Uniform Guidance.

The federal awards tested as major programs included:

Impact Aid . ' 84.041

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal award programs
was $750,000.00. ' '

Flandreau School District qualified as a low-risk entity.
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FLANDREAU SCHOOL. DISTRICT NO, 50-3
SCHEDULE OF CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CURRENT FEDERAL AUDIT FINDINGS: -
Federal Compliance-Related Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no compliance-related audit findings and questioned costs.

CURRENT OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS: ,
Internal Control-Related Finding - Significant Deficiency:

Finding Number 2016-001:
Criteria: . _
in order to achieve proper internal control, it is necessary to have segregation of duties provided
between performance, review and record keeping of the tasks related to revenues. Lack of this
segregation of duties could adversely affect the organization's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data consistent with management assertions. '

Cohdition Found: : _
A significant deficiency in internal control was reported due to fack of proper segregation of duties

for revenues, resulting in decreased reliability of reported financial data and increased potential for
the loss of public assets. - '

Recommendations: -
We recommend that the Board of Education be cognizant of this lack of segregation of duties for

revenues and attempt to provide compensating controls, whenever and wherever possible and
practical. ' ' ' -

Response: : ' ‘
The Board of Education of this entity is aware of this problem, which is a result of the size of the

entity which precludes staffing at a level sufficient to provide an ideal environment for internal
controls. They have included a response to the finding on the following page.




FLANDREAU PUBLIC SCHOOLS

600 West Community Drive
Flandreau, South Dakota 57028-1060
Telephone: 505-997-3263 Fax: 605-997-2437
www.flandreau.k12.5d.us.

Rick Weser -

Lisa SANDERSON
Superintendent

Business Manager

CORRECTIVE PLAN OF ACTION
JUNE 30, 2016

Flandreau School District No. 50-3 has considered the lack of segregation of duties for revenues. At
this time, it is not cost effective for Flandreau School District No. 50-3 to hire the additional staff
needed to achieve segregation of duties. Alternate procedures have been implemented by Flandreau
School District to decrease the likelihood that financial data is adversely affected.

Flandreau School District's Board will continue to monitor the necessity to have segregation of duties
for revenues and to implement such segregation as budget dollars and board authority allow.

CZ?\A@V Q.MOL@W | | 7 7

Business Manager Superintendent
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